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MATANGI FACTORY
HISTORIC PLACES TRUST
RESTORATION PROPOSAL

HISTORY

Investigating the history of the Glaxo building asite will be an
on going project. So far it has been an extraordynateresting
journey and has resulted in some really excitingdsi For
arguments sake, we had no idea that there haddmeearlier dairy
factory on the site before the Glaxo factory. Weeveven more
surprised when we got a photo of this earlier fgctnd realised
that it was still on site. More surprises were tdiofiv with the
discovery of not another one, but another threedofss. This
made a total of four factories in Matangi before thain “Glaxo
building” was constructed between 1917 and 1919.



THE FIRST FACTORY

The first factory we now believe to have been hariltthe site was
a creamery. This was built in 1885 and in 1886 wagplying
cream to Henry Reynolds’ newly built Pukekura Buttactory.
This was the first butter factory in the WaikataldReynolds was
responsible for the original brand name “Anchorllegedly
because he had one tattooed on his arm. Matangdinoed to
supply cream to Pukekura until Reynolds built aeothbutter
factory at Newstead in 1888. At this point Matabggan to supply
Newstead. Henry Reynolds was expanding Anchor great rate
and he commissioned the building of ma
other creameries and skimming stations thro
the Waikato to keep up with his demand.
1896 Henry Reynolds sold all his interests
the dairy industry, including the Anchor brand
name, to the New Zealand Dairy Association
(N.Z.D.A)).

In 1912 the creamery was destroyed by fire §
it was re-built shortly after.

We are still trying to determine where th
building was located on the factory site.

Henry Reynolds

The old creamery on the
Matangi site, built we
believe in 1885 when the
site was established. It
burnt down in 1912. This
photo was taken in 1906.




THE SECOND FACTORY

In 1894 a site in Matangi, adjacent to the railviiag at the back
of the present factory, was purchased by the Nealafid Packing
Company. Sometime before 1900 they built a chesgerly.

In 1900 the cheese factory was taken over by W.dirdy & Co.

Ltd and they altered it to make condensed milk. Nawdings

were added to the left and right of the cheeseofgcind a large
boiler was installed. While construction took plaitee Cheese
factory continued to operate. Around 1901 W.
Murray & Co Ltd commenced production
Highlander condensed milk.

In 1916 W. T. Murray & Co. Ltd went into
liquidation and production of condensed mi
ceased. The Murrays were apparently hav
problems with the tin plate they were using in t
canning process and a lot of milk was spoiled d
to the solder on the tins not sealing properly.

W.T. Murray & Co. had also purchased the Mi
Preserving Works at Underwood near Invercarg
and also produced Highlander condensed milk|
this plant. Like the Matangi factory this plant we
into receivership and was taken over by anothempamy, the New
Zealand Milk Products Company. In 1938 Nestlés fait

ownership of this Milk works. Consequently, the ¢gHiander”
brand became known as Nestlé®Highlander®.

The “Highlander” brand first made at Matangi hagdl on through
the South Island subsidiary and Nestlé.

Interestingly while our investigations pointed to.WWMurray &
Co. having problems with the soldering on theirssame have also
discovered that a Mr. William Sim, who worked asesgineer in
the W.T. Murray & Co. Ltd Underwood plant, inventexh
“automaticcontrivance” a machine used for cappiagscwithout
the use of solder at an impressive rate exceedihgdahs per
minute. By 1913 the “Sims capping machine” was bépaf
capping over 17,000 cans per day. Sim duly tookirention to



America and followed up earlier patent rights infN£&ealand with
Commonwealth patents and letters of protection.

We are still investigating whether Matangi had an'S capping
machine” Regardless of whether it did or not, thigds another
extraordinary invention that has come out of thevNé&esaland
Dairy industry essentially transforming canninghe present day.

ol
William Sim and his capping' machine

In 1916 the building was taken over by the MataQijeese
Company. They commenced cheese manufacture; tlisonig a
small co-operative with just 15 suppliers. The duling pictures
show the Cheese Factory operating while the bditsse and
associated buildings are under construction.

The New Zealand Packing Companies cheese buildinguihg construction of the
condensed milk buildings. Photo believed to have ba taken in 1900



Photo of the New Zealand Packing Companies Buildirsg An extra two buildings
have been built onto the left of the main building.These two buildings are still on
the site.

The boiler buildings to the right have since beemaved. Other
photos we have indicate the flue was removed att6@0. The
other buildings to the right would have been rendogemetime
pre 1946 when the new generator and boiler was dithis site.

After construction of the Glaxo building the buiidiwas used as a
milk powder store and over the years these buiklingve been
used for many other things. On some drawings italseled
processed cheese; other people remember it asch hoom, a
gym, and a billiards room.

The New Zealand Packing Companies Cheese/Condensedk factory as it stands
today



The New Zealand Packing Companies Cheese/Condensedk factory as it stands
today

Huge sandwich style beams bolted together make ume truss work inside the
building to the immediate left of the original facory.



THE THIRD FACTORY

In 1900 a butter factory was opened in Matangi iy N.Z.D.A.
Arthur Furze was the prime mover behind this dgwelent. Note
that at this stage the N.Z.D.A. had purchased aamd mnning
Henry Reynolds’ butter factories around the Nosgtarid as well.
This then saved any of the milk collected at thetdey from
having to leave for processing.

We are once again unsure of the location of thetofg. However,
it would make sense if it was in the same areahasN.Z.D.A.
cheese factory, which was built on the opposite sitithe road
adjacent to the railway line.



THE FORTH FACTORY

In 1914 the N.Z.D.A. built a cheese factory in Maaon the
opposite side of the road to the New Zealand Pgckiompanies
Buildings. When the Glaxo factory was built thisldung became
a workers hostel for the Glaxo employees. It theoame a play
centre and now once again has reverted back tstalho

r" Ip:-:-

Glaxo Hostel around 1920, previously the N.Z.D.A.leese factory

Photo of the N.Z.D.A. cheese factory
taken in 1985 as a play centre.




Photo of the N.Z.D.A. cheese factory taken in 198 a play centre.

The N.Z.D.A. Factory as it stands today, as a hostagain.
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THE FIFTH FACTORY ON THE SITE

The fifth factory to be built on the site was thiax® Factory. The
following pages go into the history and the deveiept of the site
through to the present day. It is this buildingtthas the category
Il status with the Historic Places Trust and is pumary interest.

GLAXO
The story of the “Glaxo building” goes back to Bythorpe to
Joseph Edward Nathan.

In the late 1800’s dairy farming was not a starmhaloption. Most
farmers would keep a few dairy cows to supply tleeds of
themselves and their families. Anything extra woblkl sold or
bartered at the local store.

1882 saw the advent of refrigerated transport. Traissformed the
opportunities available for dairy production. Farsmmeould move
their produce not only around the country, but atbthe world as
well. Dairy farming went from a way of life to a waf living,
both accessible and profitable.

From 1883, now that the dairy industry was a viablsiness,
numerous dairy factories began to dot the landsddpst of these
factories were small, dealing with only 10-20 farmsthe close
vicinity including the factories at Matangi.

Most of the small factories were built hurriedly ¢get in on a
booming market and while they have historical digance they
had little architectural or cultural significance.

Joseph Nathan saw the advantages of refrigeraady en and
was at the forefront of this movement. He builtbought into 17
creameries in the Manuwatu and held shares in datiories.
With his sons he became interested in dried miltk @n1904 he
secured the rights to a roller drying process forng) milk but it
was flawed. The Nathans, however, remedied thelgmb and
obtained patents. Their Makino factory became thst in New
Zealand to produce dried milk, which it continuex do for a
further 70 years.

The target markets for this were the growing citiesEngland
where fresh milk was not readily available and byeg
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considerations made dried milk a very good propmsitas an
alternative baby food.

Roller style milk dryer in operation. The milk was sprayed onto the hot
surface and then scraped off as the steam heatedioger rotated.

After discussion the Nathans decided that “Glaxauld be the
name of their new Baby food. Success was not imatedbut
came after “the Glaxo Baby Book” was produced 8 &fter
nurses employed by Nathan found it difficult to\aas the flood
of mothers enquiries. By 1922 a million copies lo¢ baby book
were published, Glaxo was a household name antable would
endure for over 60 years.

Glaxo “Baby Book”

12



Personal specific mail was sent to doctors, petsoisés were
made and birth notices were used to mail mothdrs. Advertising
World Magazine said that, “It was the most sucads&irm of
advertising of the present day.” In 1913 they sé&®kven years
ago Glaxo was known among a very small section hed t
community — today it is no exaggeration to say yverther
knows about Glaxo.”

By accident Glaxo had invented direct marketing.e TGlaxo
slogan “Glaxo Builds Bonnie Babies” was known by Hew
Zealanders at the time and many of us are “Glaxmd38 and our
first solids were Farrex, another of Nathans présluc

Joseph Nathan decided to move back to London i® 888 leave
his sons, David and Fred Nathan, in charge of Jodigihan and
Co. Joseph was regarded as a bit of a socialiteNawd Zealand
was not in his interests. He decided that withrtbed in England
for a product such as theirs he should go back stadt up a
marketing division of Glaxo and get the product egted
throughout Europe as well as New Zealand. JosepiaNand Co
Ltd was registered in London in 1899. 26 yearsraftdad first
been formed in New Zealand. The name Glaxo wastergd 7
years later on the #70ctober 1906.

In 1912 Joseph Nathan died and the London sideeobperation
passed on to Louis Nathan (his cousin) with Davidthsn
appointed Chairman of New Zealand and Fred Natipgoiated
New Zealand director

The London offices of Glaxo had insisted that N&ealand
production be broadened as the demands for theigrroldiring the
war were growing rapidly as Glaxo had been recaghias a
supplement for soldiers. Supply in Bunnythorpe waset
guaranteed meaning other supply markets had toubsug@d. A
new trunk line between Auckland and Wellington hagkened
farming in the Waikato and it was there the Nathdesided to
expand to.

The first step was to negotiate with establishelydeompanies
endeavoring to convert one or more of their fae®itd dried milk
production. The Nathans engaged a Hamilton basetitect
Frederick C. Daniell who specialised in designilagtéries and
commercial premises, for advice.

The first factory in the Waikato to give the Nathaand Glaxo the
nod of approval was the Waihou Valley Dairy Compamiiey

13



committed to convert their cheese factory at Waihoue miles
west of Te Aroha, to produce milk powder. The Natha
contracted to purchase the output of the factoy @nthe end of
twelve years purchase the buildings if they had almady done
so. The Waihou Valley Dairy Company, Glaxo Deparitméhen
proceeded to take tenders for the supply of thehinacy and
equipment. The factory was finally completed anerggg on the
6" of December 1916. It had cc&3,500 for renovatio#2,300 for
the cottages an£b,500 for machinery and equipment.

The Nathans then focused on the N.Z.D.A. In 191Fohations
were concluded by a committee of six suppliers leadr. Lee
Martin and Mr. H. Pacy of the N.Z.D.A. with Joseplathan &
Company (GLAXO) Ltd. The meeting was concluded wilie
amalgamation of all of the different factories iratdngi. Into a
new entity, the New Zealand Dairy Association Group

In November 1917 a further agreement was made kbghwiie

New Zealand Dairy Association (Grodpyindertook to build a
dried milk factory at Matangi. The factory was tankle 25,000
gallons of milk a day. This was to be the biggesbsim
technologically advanced milk factory in the worltdwould deal

with more milk under one roof than anywhere in therld and

would produce over 1826 tons of Glaxos total 2130 annual
output. Work began on the factory during the F&irld War. It

was one of very few buildings constructed at timgetdue not only
to the limited available labour but also due to #swarcity of

building materials

Before construction of the Matangi dairy factorysa@mpleted in
1919, talks with the N.Z.D.A. and Glaxo, lead te@ tbontinued
amalgamation of the N.Z.D.A. (New Zealand Dairy é@ation),
the W.V.D.C. (Waihou Valley Dairy Company) and S¥illiam

Goodfellows W.C.D.C (Waikato Co-operative Dairy Guany)
The resulting giant Dairy Co-Op was to be known tas
N.Z.C.D.C. or, the New Zealand Co-operative Daigr@any.

NZCDC was of course to go on and grow into New Zedls
foremost dairy company, finally merging with “Kiwito form
Fonterra, New Zealands biggest company.

Developing the dried milk industry in the Waikatmoyed to be a
huge undertaking for the Nathan directors. Not amye there the
associated costs with building and equipping newtofées but

! While the N.Z.D.A. was changed to N.Z.D.A. Grougcdments continued to
refer to it as the N.Z.D.A.
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there were related consequences as well. Local cdsutaid
complaints about increased wear on the roads #kslvéth regard
to who was going to reimburse for the increased atmmead to
continual frustration. Other negotiations involvéte Railways
Department over building goods sheds and whetheamiild be
worthwhile developing hydro electric power in theilkato.

On the 2¥ of March 1918 David Nathan wrote a letter to H.E.
Pacy of the N.Z.D.A., with whom he was becomingejdiiendly,
saying that he was very worried about the costefwork at the
Matangi factory. He remarked “I do not like thesery large

factories. They seem too big.”

He also commented on the somewhat strained retdipmetween
the Nathans and the N.Z.D.A. (by this stage it hetdially led to
litigation) He thought they should try and sortnig out amongst
themselves to avoid any more “.£800 to £1000 lawyers bills”
That particular disagreement was duly settled dabart.

The factory, funded by Glaxo, promoted by N.Z.D.designed by
Frederick C. Daniell and built by Mr. R. Sandersaswfinally

opened November 121919, for the cost of abo#140,000 for the
village, factory and fitting out of the buildingé.was opened amid
huge fanfare by the Prime Minister of the time, ®WMassey. The
following is an extract from the Waikato times dhtdovember
13" 1919 detailing the Prime Ministers speech to thegd

gathering.

WHERE GLAXO IS MADE
OPENING OF NEW FACTORY
MATANGI LEADS THE WORLD
PRIME MINISTERS CONGRATULATIONS

Waikato Times 13" November 1919.

The prime minister, who
received an ovation on rising to
speak, congratulated the
suppliers and the district upon
the erection of the magnificent
factory.

He had been informed
that the building was the biggest
and best-equipped in the world,
and having inspected the place
he quite believed this statement.

The factory was proof
that the people of the Waikato
had confidence in themselves,

15

their district and their great
dairying industry. During his
stay in Europe he had seen a
good deal of dried milk, where
it was greatly appreciated, and
personally he did not want
anything better. He thought
there was not the slightest doubt
that dried milk had come to
stay, and he was satisfied that in
time to come milkmen would be
dispensed with altogether and
people would purchase their
milk in the solid state from the



grocer. The dried milk industry

was a comparatively new one,
and great credit was due to its
pioneers, Messrs Joseph Nathan
and Co. In 1916-17, 542 tons of
dried milk was manufactured in

New Zealand, and this at the
time seemed a very large

guantity. The following season,

however, the amount had

increased to 2950 tons, while
last season 3225 tons. It was
easy to predict, therefore, that
the output during the season
now commencing would show a

still further increase.

He heard that six more
factories were to be erected in
the Waikato in readiness for
next season’s opening. This
augured well for the industry.
Production of dried milk had for
some years been going on in
America and Canada, and to a
certain extent in England. The
latest American production
figures showed that 5,026,736Ib
of whole milk powder and
20,599,920Ib of skim-milk and
butter milk powder, or 44,440
tons was manufactured last year,
so that New Zealand, where the
industry was comparatively new
was really not very far behind
this great continent.

Continuing, the speaker
said the dominions prosperity
depended on its exports. The
country had taken on a
tremendous liability during the
war and to liquidate this it
would be necessary to increase
the productiveness of the soll
and to go in more for scientific

farming and dairying, so that the
land and animals already
producing would be made to
increase their yield. He had, he
declared, no fear for the future,
for he had faith in the country
and in the farmer. It was 40
years ago, he said, since he first
came to the Waikato, and he
could honestly say he liked no
place better. (applause) He had
seen many countries and been
over the greater part of New
Zealand, and he could assure his
hearers that the lives of the
people in the Waikato were cast
in pleasant places. He could
only ask them to continue as
they had been doing, and to go
on increasing their
productiveness. While in
England he had met the heads of
the greatest commercial
departments of the Empire and
believed the interviews he had
with them had a great deal to do
with the fact that the Dominion
got the amount of shipping it
did. The future of the Dominion
depended on the soil and he
urged upon them the importance
of increasing productiveness. If
they did this all would be well
with this glorious little country.
(Applause) He had the
greatest pleasure in declaring
the factory open and once again
offered his most hearty
congratulations to the directors
the suppliers and the district.
(Applause)

While the London offices expressed warm appreaiatimthe job
Fred and David Nathan had achieved, the huge fiaboatlay
caused inevitable friction between the New Zealand London
Glaxo offices. This culminated in the London ofBcproposing
that all authority be moved to them and that Da\athan retire
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from his position. This was naturally rejectedwhis decided that
he would take a break instead and was due to daistralia at the

end of March 1920. But on the 2@f March David Nathan took
ill;, he was rushed to Hospital but unfortunatelysged away
shortly after admission from a hemorrhage. It woajpear that
the massive stress and the long hours in the gettm of the

Waikato operation had taken their toll.

The Glaxo factory was however regarded as the miadebry in
the N.Z.C.D.C. group. Extensive gardens were estaad around
the factory. All overseas visitors to the comparhead office in
Hamilton were taken for a visit at the Matangi Gl&actory.

Cheese was produced at the factory for a shortitini®23 after a
fire burnt down part of the factory. Another fira 1932 also
resulted in rebuilding part of the factory again. was not
surprising that the fires broke out when you coessithat at times
the workers room temperature could exceeC4with the boilers
running and inadequate ventilation it was a retopdire

Glaxo has gone on from health foods, supplemerds/aamins to
pharmaceuticals. Glaxo laboratories were at théinguiedge of
medical science. It was one of the biggest playeithe creation
and production of penicillin. At one stage Glaxosduction of the
drug made up 90% of all Britain’s production, Glaxiso carried
out pioneering work in the production of the fir&ritish

poliomyelitis vaccine. In 1996 Glaxo became theoséclargest
pharmaceutical group in the world and then off' Z¥ecember
2000 the name born in frontier New Zealand wastldito the top
of the merged GlaxoSmithKline (GSK) to become thegést
pharmaceutical group in the world.

The significant part Matangi played in the creatwmigthe huge
Glaxo and Fonterra conglomerates, the two biggestpanies to
be spawned in New Zealand’s history and the exgawee of the
factory building is of national significance and nity of
protecting for future generations.
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CANNING

Matangi’s influence on the industry did not stoghnGlaxo
however. Glaxo continued to operate at Matangil d®86. At this
time, production from Glaxos Bunnythorpe plants wasmed to
be sufficient for their needs and they pulled duhe Waikato
entirely. N.Z.C.D.C. took over production at Magaand it was
used for the production of casein for a short geabtime before
the factory had a can-making factory added toitt) Wwox making
facilities to manufacture condensed milk. We badiévs was one
of the first fully mechanised can making factolie®New Zealand.
based on American technology. One also has to wdrae much
of William Sims technology came back to Matangihattis
investment. Note:(Watties started canning peaahdanuary 1935
using purchased cans and in 1939 Watties wererngakti
manufacturing their own cans. We don’t know if thegere
automated as apparently cans were made manuakyarestill
researching this information). Clive Jensen, amaxiager of the
Matangi factory said this plant was still operatind.975 but
when he returned in 1982 it had been removed. Heves the
equipment was shifted to Hamilton operations.

An undated booklet put out by the NZCDC shows Mgiaat
about this time in the following pages.

Left. Treating tops and bottoms with the can sealig solution

Right. Fixing the bottoms to fabricated can bottoms
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Over 20 million 16-o0z. tins are required to can theevaporated milk at the
Matangi factory. To supply this, the factory runs ts own can making
facility. (Above. Tops and bottoms being cut with astagger press)

19



From the refrigerated holding tanks the evaporatedmilk passes to the
automated filling machines which fill and seal thecans.

i it _...._?. T -
After the fillers the now full cans are conveyed tahe sterilisers through
which they pass after careful inspection.
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After sterilisation control samples are held from ach batch and subjected

to laboratory control and analysis.

21

Not until

each batch is
passed by the
laboratory is

it graded,

labeled and
ready for
export.




After the canning plant installation the factorysaable to be run
as a general purpose unit, able to change outpéndéng on the
market demands. It was mainly producing powderedl an
condensed milk. In 1936 20,000,000 cans of conadknsklk were
made and cheese was made on an “as required” basis.

TRANSPORT

Matangi and Te Awamutu were the first factoriedhie world to
use milk tankers. The use of tankers to carry tille was a move
that would introduce huge efficiencies into millarisport and
allow for the development of today’s giant dairgis. This was a
major turning point for the New Zealand dairy inttusUp until
this time the milk cans were delivered by the faismer factory
truck to the landing at the front of the factoryideva day. At
Matangi the milk arrived by horse and cart and m&aay twice
daily from the farms in the area.. Samples ofrthik were taken
for testing, the milk was weighed and tipped irfte holding vats
below the landing floor. This was called a tippstgtion. We had
wondered what the diamond patterned steel embeiddie floor
of the landing was for. Apparently this steel m#deasy to slide
the cans across the floor, while ensuring peomendt slip over.

Tipping station at Matangi. Note the bottles on theright side, for taking
milk samples.
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The two different methods of milk transport, the ot and the new. This
photo was taken at the Bunnythorpe “Glaxo” factory.

When the tankers were introduced the vat areaaffrtnt was
concreted over to create a dungeon under the flboe. service
stairs to the tipping vats are still in this dungewhich can now
only be accessed by a hole in the floor. The wirglomere
removed and the walls cut down and horizontal wage installed
to take the bulk milk from the tankers. Later themgks were also
removed, the openings were blocked up and freestgranks
were built on concrete plinths at the front of thetory.

Tanker delivering milk to a factory. The horizontal tanks at Matangi
would have been very similar to those in the abowgicture.
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The giant free-standing tanks in 1985 in front of tk Glaxo building.

Concrete plinths in front
of the Glaxo building.

During World War 1l production at Matangi turned $apporting
the war effort by producing condensed milk for thé&. forces. A
strike in 1941 by manpowered workers meant that ferener
suppliers had to work the factory by night whilél starming

during the day.
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In 1946 it was decided to build a stand-alone &ioad 3-megawatt
power station. The high pressure steam was usqubueer the
generator turbines and the low grade steam, dfteturbine was
used to run the factory. The clean, boiling hotdmmsate from the
factory would then be returned to the boiler, tmugintaining a
very high thermal efficiency.

This was completed in 1947 and can be seen indhal aiew of
the factory in the right hand corner of the factooynplex.

This sort of co-generative power station would haeen one of
the first such installations in New Zealand and lddwave secured
the factories steam and electricity requirements.

The following pages from the undated booklet shdw to-
generation process.

Coal consumption could easily exceed 100 tons peaydfor a large factory
like Matangi. (note: this photo not of Matangi it is very similar however)
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While the pictures are not of the Matangi factaself the coal
handling systems, the turbine room and the bolmrk the same
as the installations in Matangi.

Steam consumption in milk powder factories could eceed 100,060 Is. din
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EVAPORATION AND SPRAY DRYING.

Following the war considerable investment was madesw plant
at Matangi, with a large number of experiments ¢paionducted.
During 1950 and 51 processed cheese was manufdcrabout
this time the factory was also annually producibgu 2000 tons
of condensed milk. 1954 saw the manufacture of sEhdmeing
stopped and replaced by the manufacture of casgim.
experimental plant was established in 1962 to alfoanufacture
of skim milk and anhydrous milk fat for the prodoct of

reconstituted condensed milk. The experiment wasessful and
a full sized 5-effect evaporator set was instaiteti965.

Roller dryers were very limiting because they wotddd to burn
the milk. If it was burnt the powder was not aldebe re-dissolved
as a drinking liquid. Evaporated condensed milktenother hand
could be reconstituted but it was more expensivieaosport due
to it being heavier because of a higher moistunetezd. At the
time the dairy industry was caught between two edéht
technologies with their various different pros aods.

In 1956 the first spray dryer was installed in NEealand at the
Morrinsville Lockerbie factory. Spray dryers wetdeto produce
powdered milk that could be reconstituted for dimgkmilk. The
evaporator system at Matangi was no longer the epexd
technology due to the high transport costs. In 18Gpray dryer
and a small research and development dryer weoeiradtalled at
Matangi.
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Spray dryer to the left and 5-effect evaporators irnthe lower building on the right,
photo 1985.

Another view of The spray tower and 5-effect evapators at Matangi. The Glaxo
building is off to the right out of shot.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

At this stage Matangi was an extraordinarily velsatite, able to
make a whole range of products. It was producingned
evaporated milk, technical rennet caseinates, wi@yder and
baby milk powder. Due to its versatility Matangichene one of
the key R&D laboratories for the NZCDC. Matangi iome trial
goats milk through its dryers and was responsibtenfuch of the
development work into the first caseinates.

Casein was traditionally made by precipitating skimik with
either lactic acid (producing lactic casein) or galated by rennin
extract, (producing rennet casein) The curds weessed to
remove excess moisture then milled, dried, sorted packed.
Casein is insoluble, while caseinates are solufie. technologies
developed at the Matangi factory taking the wetrasurds and
spray drying them to make a soluble product, bectmadasis of
the caseinate factories at Paerata and Reporoambléication
involved the adding of spray dryers to casein pglaitt make
caseinating plants.

During this latter period Matangi was mainly proshgccondensed
milk and caseinates. The factory made condensekl fnoin late

October through until early April, as this was trdy time of the
year the milk was suitable for condensing due tapevated milk
requiring high heat stability. The rest of the ssashe factory
made a product called “Technical rennet casein’sTtad major
markets in Japan, the Persian Gulf, Latin Americad dhe
Caribbean. Rather than follow the course of thesio8kim milk

products rennet casein tended towards a more malistd

market. Here it filled various different niches eagulated by
rennin extract it was a very versatile productized in costume
jewelry, buttons, glues, fibres, foodstuffs andpimnting papers.
The residual whey was made into whey powder. Tlas used for
such things as stock supplements and pharmaceptmadlicts.

Matangi’'s manufacturing pattern of supplying demangs
continued for several years with 1974’s output ciirgy of 4,619
tons of milk powder, 2,044 tons of casein and 1,608s of
condensed milk.

By 1980 manufacture of specialty products such asned
milkshakes and canned milk puddings had been desd|o
Matangi at this time had a annual canning prodactd 8.5
million cans, most of this however did consist ohdensed milk.
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The development of U.H.T. technology and tetrapsiyserceded
canned condensed milk and in 1982 production oflensed milk
ceased at Matangi, in the last season it producganilion cans
of condensed milk 272,000 cans of chocolate milkeh20,000
cans of strawberry milkshake.

The twilight years of the factory were spent witte tproduction
and manufacturing of technical rennet casein. Alith making a
few short runs of high fat milk powder for speciiagstomer needs.
The factory also fulfiled an important role in tag all milk
produced out of season from as far south as thgi#a Plains
and as far north as Paerata and Takanini.

Matangi factory finally closed its doors and becasiient in 1987
to very little fanfare. Newer factories took thetraxmilk and the
Factory at Matangi was sold to Mr. Brunt, he ordsokto Mr. and
Mrs. Lamb, who in turn sold it to the Mowbrays.

During this period most of the equipment has beepped and
numerous people have rented small spaces for stamagunning
small business’.

By any stretch of the imagination the history oftétagi and the
Matangi dairy factory, has played an extraordinesle in New
Zealand’s dairying history.

Bearing in mind that agriculture is the backbon®efv Zealand’s
economy and that dairying is the backbone of aliticel in the
Waikato, as well as many other regions of New Zwlshis is an
important story for New Zealand as a whole.
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THE GLAXO BUILDING

When we bought the factory we discovered 5 rubbestps full of
drawings of the factory. Amongst these were thgioal Indian
ink on linen hand drawings of the “Glaxo” factoriprg with the
hand drawn and water coloured structural drawifigs. following
pages show these sectional and elevation drawisgdrawn by
Frederick Daniell of Daniell and Clay Architectshamilton.

ToR

LAST  [LEVATION.

HAMILTOA.

PROPOSID GLAXO TACTORY AT MATANGI
THE AW ZEALAND DARY ASSOCATION LID.
M - | } : I i ) !

DANICLL & CRAY ARCHITECTS
SCALL CMHT FEET 7O ONE (CH

East elevation, Matangi factory Glaxo building.
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South elevation, Matangi factory Glaxo building.
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West elevation, Matangi factory Glaxo building.
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North elevation, Matangi factory Glaxo building.
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Sectional drawing of Matangi factory, Glaxo building.




Sectional drawing of Matangi factory, Glaxo building.




Sectional drawing of Matangi factory, Glaxo building.
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Sectional drawing of Matangi factory, Glaxo building.




Roof plan of Matangi factory Glaxo Building.
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Floor plan of the Matangi Factory Glaxo building
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These structural drawings show the huge structoeaims and a
sarked roof of solid Rimu. The walls are made ahfoeced
concrete while the roof shows tiled ridgelines withiha” shaped
finials on the gable ends.

The centre of the building has an elegant towerclkland a
flagpole. Once we saw these drawings we had anwatming
desire to re-create this building to generate thssipn that was
apparent in the original drawings. We had mixedirfige about
this desire, as we could not seriously believe #rgtone would
build such a grandiose factory and we were haviifficalty
justifying how we could now go back and make ittlaes architect
first conceived it and maintain the buildings higtontegrity.

During this investigation, when we got the oppoitiyio look at

the Fonterra archives for a couple of hours weadieed a series
of photographs of the factory from the day it gdrthrough until

the upgrade in 1942.

The first smoke rising from the new Glaxo factory & Matangi. (The photo
had “start up” written on the back so it is in 1919)
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Photo showing the factory in full swing with milk ans lined along the front
of the building and the can washing building off tothe right full of empty
milk cans. The old trucks used for collecting the 1tk are in the foreground
and the company Bowling Green is to the right of th drive. The photo is
estimated to be early 1920's

New driveway put in to the main factory. Picture stimated to have been
taken late 1920’s early 1930’s
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There in the early photographs is all the filigr&@e only thing
missing was the elegant tower block and the flagploiterestingly
enough we have since realised that all the hugetste for this
tower has been built right up to just below thef mmit is apparent
that they intended completing this part of the diady at some
stage. It also means that the tower could be bwoilhe original
specification quite easily.

It is apparent from the early photos that the nimody of the roof
was some form of tile. The tiles appear flat arel\ary fine. As a
boy Brew Robinson, who grew up in the area, coafdember the
roofing coming off the building. He could also rem@er the roofs
coming off the F.C. Daniell designed houses in Vilege. He
could remember they were flat small segments bey there not
wooden shingles as they broke up like a clay Hle.then recalled
that Tom Bryants house on the outskirts of Mataalgio designed
by F.C. Daniell, had the same cladding on the roofil just
recently.

The Douglas’ who now own this extraordinary houshk sad a
number of the original tiles.

I was incredulous to find that the tile was in faatflat kiln fired
clay shingle design. Because the shingle desigmimgai had to
have a triple layer of tiles at each of the joieach tile has just
over 1/3 of the tile exposed.

Sample of the clay tiles used on the factory roofate that only about a third of each
tile is ever actually exposed.
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We were later able to find a photograph of the
Presbyterian/Methodist church, which shows thelss in more
detail although it is apparent they are damaged.

Church roof with clay tiles on the roof.

The Glaxo building with these tiles and the filigrazvould have
made an extraordinary architectural statement.

We calculated that in the dry state, there were A€ tons of
these tiles on the roof. This then explains thedriee the huge
Rimu trusses.

Besides the weight, the tiles had one other ashilieel. The
mating flat surfaces and the non-sealing joint leetw the tiles
meant water would get between the tile faces andldvoot dry
out. The entrapped water would freeze during theewifrosts and
the bottom part of the tile would blow apart. Temt of damage
can be seen on the roof of the church and alsdemtile supplied
to us by the Douglas’

What makes the extravagance of the roof even mma&ziag is
that all of this was built during the First Worldawat a time when
labour and materials were at a premium. Furthéhnit the factory
houses and the church had the same roof materialodld be
interesting to know if these tiles had to be impdror whether
they were actually made in New Zealand. Regardibescost of
the roof would have been extraordinary.
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Bottom face of tile blown from water freezing the mside of the tile and expanding.
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Example of one of the trusses in the building.
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FREDERICK CHARLES DANIELL

During this familiarisation with the building andsihistory we

never appreciated the significance of FrederickDaniell the

architect of this building. We have since beennmfed he was one
of New Zealand’s foremost architects in industaatl commercial
buildings for this period. This perhaps goes sometwaexplaining

the exceptional attention to detail that is thelrhatk of this

building.

PROPOSED GLAXO" FACTORY AT MATANGI TFOR
TAE AEW ZEALAND DAIRY AS50CIATION LIMITED.

DAMILLL & CRAY . ARCHITICTS . HAMILTON.
SCALL  EIGHT TEET TO OAL INCH.

Other F.C. Daniell’s buildings in the Waikato swahTom Bryants
home and the Church on the corner of Te Aroharst.River rd
are also fine examples of his work. Notice all be tDaniell
creations have an exceptional level of detail.

The Douglas’ home designed by F.C. Daniell in Matayi
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F.C. Daniell designed church in Hamilton

F.C. Daniell's own house on O’Neil st. in Hamilton
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M ATANGI VILLAGE

Photographs from the Glaxo history book show thetofy in
1920-21 along with the company houses and hosteéhdse days
you did not just build a factory, you had to buildarge part of the
village. F.C. Daniell's attention to detail is veapparent in all
these associated buildings, particularly the Meigtdeéresbyterian
church which was unfortunately demolished by theurch
sometime before 1975. The church and the 9 empddyeeses, all
designed by Daniell and all with the fine, clayefirtiles, finials
and detailed concrete work. These are exceptiama humber of
reasons; like the factory no expense has beendparkthey were
all built during the First World War, during a peadi of both labour
and material shortages. Furthermore the buildingsta concrete
construction similar to the factory. This sort @instruction, using
expensive materials was not common for buildingsesy at the
time these would have been considered to be exceptemployee
homes.

The school which was first opened in 1910 was kdtabuth west
of where the Glaxo factory was built. Accordingriewspapers of
the day “the increased traffic and noise made thed site, right
next door, quite unsuitable.” Another prime reasonthe move

was due to the fact that washing down water ancagevirom the
factory flowed down a drain, past the school andstay a health
hazard. Brew Robinson recalls a friend of his figjlinto the drain.
He was up to his neck in effluent, was unable tobaye and was
screaming. The teachers had to get into the doaiget him out.
Brew recalls wryly that the school was shifted $lyoafter this.

The shifting of the school is recorded as being dssociation”
with the building of the Glaxo factory.

The factory also had an area on the right hand sidde main
drive that was used for numerous things. In théyqarotographs
it is a croquet area, it was then changed to teooists and in
another it is a bowling green.

Over the years many changes have occurred in thag¥i The
original stores have been demolished and a nevk iioidt.

Whilst the factory was in its heyday a general esteas situated
between the railway and the Dairy Company. Thigestsold

almost everything from hardware to groceries, dmage grass
seed and mash to petrol. When the Glaxo factorybuédsand the
Dairy Company brought the land, the dwelling whinad adjoined
the store was renovated and became the factory gedesa
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residence. On the opposite side of the road waliard hall and
in front of it a small store selling sweets andacajtes alongside
this was another small store then a butchery arsidéethat a
saddlery.

In the 1920’s a bakery was built in what was orédjyna boarding
house for Glaxo workers. The front part was adaptetl changed
into a residence. The bakery stayed until 1954 lathvpoint the
buildings were used for weekly doctor’s visits by. Foung from

Hillcrest.

In 1914 a post office was built in the village andhe 1930's a
single Europa petrol pump was added.

East elevation of the newly constructed Glaxo buiidg.

These photographs were taken in 1920-21 by Harry pécott’s wife, Doris.
Harry Jephcott was at the time the chief chemist foGlaxo.
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MATANGI VILLAGE 1920’s

One of the workers houses Working menohtel

Chapel / town hall with the workers housing beyond

Glaxo sports day at Matangi 1920.
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MATANGI VILLAGE TODAY

Chapel Row of old workers houses

P
.i-'!.

Matangi Hall Old workers house

Matangi school
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TIMELINE FOR THE MATANGI DAIRY FACTORY SITE

14

L

DATE

1873 Joseph Nathan & Co Ltd founded in New Zealand

1885 Matangi site was established, a creamergkionming station
was built.

1886 Henry Reynolds starts Anchor butter factoty Pakekura
Matangi creamery becomes supplier.

1894 N. Z. Packing company purchases site andd$utheese
factory at Matangi.

1899 Joseph Nathan & Co Ltd registered in London

1900 New Zealand Dairy Association (N.Z.D.A.) Opea butter
factory at Matangi..

1901 W.T. Murray Ltd takes over N.Z. Packing compauildings,
builds boiler and other buildings and begins praiduc of
Highlander condensed milk.

1906 Glaxo name first registered

1909-1911 William Sim invents canning machine.

1910 Matangi School opens due to increased arearh

1912 N.Z.D.A. Creamery burns down, it is quickdplaced though.

1914 N.Z.D.A. builds a cheese factory at Matangi.

1916 W.T. Murray Itd goes into liquidation.

1916 Matangi Cheese Company takes over New ZedPauwiing
Company buildings from W.T. Murray.

1917 Negotiations concluded resulting in the amualgtion of the
various companies at Matangi, into the N.Z.D.A. @ro

1917 Drawings for giant milk powder factory are ngumeted,
building commences.

1919 N.Z.D.A. , W.W.D.A , W.C.D.C merge to formagit dairy

company N.Z.C.D.C.
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1919 Matangi “Glaxo Building” The largest dairycfary in the world
opens amongst much fanfare, opened by the Primasidir
(Hon. W. F. Massey) to a very large appreciativewct.
Production of milk powder for Glaxo commences.

Factory also builds houses for workers, N.Z.DchAeese factory
becomes workers hostel, NZ Packing Company becaonsss
smoko area.

1920 N.Z.C.D.C moves school further away from @ldactory dus
to noise and pollution issues.

1936 Glaxo factory passed back into the hands. AfINA.

1941 Strike during the war, means farmers havaridactory by night
and farm by day.

1946 Automatic can and box making facilities ifisth

1947 New Co-generative power station and boildt BuMatangi.

1951 Matangi and Te Awamutu first factories in #arld to introduce
tanker transport. This revolutionizes the industry.

1951 Casein manufacture begins.

1962 Experimental skim milk dryer tested.

1965 5-effect evaporator set added to factory.

1967 Spray tower dryer built.

1967 Matangi dairy factory R&D department devedomanufacturing
process for caseinates. Paerata and Reporoa esati@signed
based on this work.

1980 Speciality products produced such as cannl&dirakes and
puddings.

1987 Matangi Factory closes its doors

1990 Factory sold into private ownership, it isdi$or storage and
small business’.

2001 GlaxoSmithKlein become largest pharmaceuticaipany in the
world.

2001 New Zealands largest company Fonterra forifieelN.Z.C.D.C
is the biggest partner.

2003 Harry and Linda Mowbray purchase Matangi YpRactory
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WHY THE PROPOSED WORK NEEDS DOING.

Sealing the building up and fixing the structureblgems are the
obvious first steps. However it would be unwisedto this work

without doing the engineering that is required ®&vise the
earthquake ratings for the building. Once the ezwyimg is done
then the structural repairs can be addressed o ¥itith the final

scope of improving the earthquake ratings.

Buildings like this are only going to survive inethlong term if
they have an economic use. This building which u$ i the
country has got limited use and limited potentikbady so to
further limit its use by not being able to rentat certain uses due
to the earthquake ratings is not a sensible lorg tgtion. Better
earthquake resistance is going to make the buildetter able to
survive an earthquake and remain standing for éugenerations.

The windows that have been removed a
blocked up, need to be rebuilt to origin
drawings and fitted back into the building
Access to the building needs to be organiz
as at present the building has not got sens
access to more than half of it and this mee
the building is not commercially viable. Tod
this the tank stands at the front of the buildil
that were added after 1972 need to
removed. This will also make the buildin
visually better balanced and allow for bett
public appreciation of the building.

Essentially we are looking at preventing furthestedioration,
repairing structural damage and making the buildingentable
proposition.

Incidentally, when we bought the property this dug had a
tenant in one area and one room rented for stofdgst of the

windows were boarded up and the building was irtedbby

possums, rats and pigeons and many areas werengoait. We

have already made significant improvements but veenat in a
position to fund the big expensive items that witlsure its place
as an operating building and part of New Zealahdssory.
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PROPOSED WORK

The proposed work is to repair the roof in linehwibe long term
view of bringing the building back to its originaésthetics. This
will require structural wood work, replacement oftted fascia,
replacement of rusted spouting with the originalofibe,
replacement of internal gutters and installatiorswbictural steel
where required for earthquake resistance, removalblown
concrete, coating of reinforcing steel to prevemthfer corrosion,
replacing removed concrete and the installatiormofe steel if
required to meet earthquake regulations, repairsiobictural
columns that have been fractured and fixing of dheas where
structural walls have been removed, removal of aspestos,
repairing and replacing windows as per the origdesign to make
the building commercially viable, shifting electlcswitch rooms
which have been put in office areas at the lattages of the
factories use, installation of amenities, intermallls, doors and
services. We need to make the building accessiplernoving the
old tank stands and associated access way, They nsathe list
goes on forever if we wish to bring the buildingchdo the point
of being viable, however it can be done piece maedl this would
be our suggestion.

58



DAMAGE & RESTORATION

The internal gutters and areas of the roof areor pondition. The

water has got into the building and rotted struatbeams and has
wet the concrete to the point where the steel oednfig has rusted,
expanded and blown the concrete apart.

Leaking internal gutter, rotting trusses.

Badly rotted external guttering
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Corrugated iron on roof is in poor condition.
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Broken clear corrugated panel needs to be replaceghd resealed.

Internal gutter has been replaced with tin which ha collapsed.
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Collapsed tin gutter.
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Rotting beam from water getting under corrugated rafing.

Structural steel rusting and blowing concrete.
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Shot of roof showing rusted structural steel

Shot of roof showing rusted structural steel
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Water damage through roof and onto switch gear.

Corner showing rusting structural steel and water dmage
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The previous owners had used the building as diZertstore and

had operated a bucket loader inside the buildirge Walls were
used as backstops to load the bucket and the bhekethen been
raised up the walls scraping the concrete dowrh¢oréinforcing

steel. This sort of damage has occurred in upventy places
around the building.

Pillars scraped away by front end loader,
exposing reinforcing. 1
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A hole has been cut in a structural wall to geteasdo the middle
of the building. The structural column is now harggdown from
the roof and will need bracing with a steel beam.

Structural column cut out and now hanging.
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The front end loader has been driven into struttwalls and
fractured the huge columns; one of those damagé&smos is
adjacent to the structural column now hanging eah. The other
column is one of the main columns on the back wall.

Hole in wall with structural column hanging. Damagel columns circled

Close up showing holes in wall and damage by fromnd loader.
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Damage to the
other side of
the wall
including holes
in the wall and
damage to the
structural
column beside
the removed
column.



* |

Damage to the back wall where the front end loadehas been driven into
structural column.

Holes in walls where front end loader has run intavalls,
holes have been simply boarded up from the otherdg of
the wall to cover the holes.
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Hole where front end loader has been driven into th wall

Another hole has been cut in through a wall and mbvious no
engineering calculations were done - what's mois édjacent to
the structural column hanging in the air.

Hole cut in wall adjacent to hole with structural @lumn hanging down.
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Fascia and barge boards are rotting and needrepksced

pidkifvii

Rotting Fascia and barge boards.

Rotting barge board.
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Rotting roof boards.

I_-_. "
Tank stands in front

of the buildin

g limiting acces.
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At this stage, after an estimated $500,000 in esggnwe will
have a structurally sound building and a rentabépgsition. We
will not have attended to any of the other, perhayose aesthetic
aspects of the building such as the original fdgthat has been
discarded, repairing or replacing windows that hbeen removed
and blocked up, power supply, removal of asbesto$he list
goes on to the point where it becomes completeécomomic.

This is an important part of New Zealands histomg have to
work out a method of protecting it for future gemtens.

This photograph shows the roof in need of repair.tlalso has the concrete
plinths in the front and the access way (white builing) added later, which
we would like to remove

With regard to what we see as the best approactinéore-roofing
of the building, it would be a shame not to makergwattempt to
re-create the original roofing material as closatypossible. This
may not be entirely practical as discussed in ity section of
the report, as the original tiles were prone towg. It would
make much more sense to use a more water resigéastich as
those on other restored F.C. Daniell buildings.

The following photographs of houses, from the saree as the
Glaxo factory, in Balarat, Australia, and the refroof the
Douglas’ house show one of the types of tile weaebel would
look good on the roof. The other tile we believeuldolook good
is also depicted below. These sorts of roofingstileould enable
the building to best fit the era and the architedtention to detail
they would also enable the building to be restongith all the
original filigree.
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This is the F. C. Daniell designed, Douglas’ homeugt outside Matangi village.
Currently it has the Marseille tile on the roof. This is one of the possibilities for the
roof of the factory.

Marseille tile

House in Balarat with Marseilles tile and filigree.
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Flatter style tile closer to the original look of kuilding.

Flatter Nullarbor style tile

Flatter style tile with the capping and filigree atached
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HOW THE BUILDING BENEFITS

The building will benefit as it will hopefully prewt it getting to
the point where it is not sensible to salvaget will also make the
building commercially viable so that it will have lang term
future. If the building cannot be used it is doonedailure unless
it has an owner who is prepared to spend money with
commercial foundation.
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How THE PUBLIC BENEFIT

The public will benefit because the building wile around for
future generations to appreciate. Aesthetically lthdding is an
extraordinary example of an early"™@entury factory built with
more permanent materials than almost all of théofaes in the
various pictures in the historical books we haveeaeched. This
makes it a sensible building to invest in for tkufe. It is a big
building and with careful thought it can have a coencial future
while maintaining its original integrity.

If the building has a commercial use it will bedds in by the
people operating the various businesses and thaepeisiting the
building so in that sense the public will have @&sc® the building
in the course of their business.

We would display the history of the site in an ajpiate area
along with details on how the factory operated.sThill need

thinking through so that valuable material is naiméged. We
would also need some sort of control over accesheasite has a
bad problem with vandalism. In one building alone weplaced
over 100 window panes when we bought the prop&ityce this

repair work 12 months ago around 15 have beenulyliamaged
by intruders again. | know what | would like to &@lele to offer the
public but reality may have to be different.

The public will benefit by not having a derelictiloing in the
community with all the associated problems. Mereampower
station is an eyesore and not nice to live nextrdooA rented
aesthetically appealing building is a communityeassd lifts the
standards and property values as distinct to dejmgshem.

The dairy industry has played a major part in Neealdnds
commercial viability. This factory will remind theommunity of
those early roots.

Matangi Factory is an excellent example of the wofkkredrick

Daniell, an architect who has New Zealand wide gedmn
through this period of New Zealand history.
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SUMMARY

This is a huge building which requires a large safrmoney to
preserve and an even larger sum of money to get bdeing a
commercially viable proposition. If you look at tligtures and
fittings within the building it even blows it furéh into the red. The
trick is going to be how we can walk this buildiagead and make
it viable at minimum cost but with an eye on thegderm future
and complete restoration. | am passionate aboubuhlding but it
also needs dollars and to do it properly withoutige to the point
of commercial fittings it is going to be in excest $900, 000
based on the estimates. I'm sure the right resaltsbe achieved
for less than this if we are clever.

Nevertheless it is going to be a very costly proj@ed from a
historical point of view it is clearly justified.

The reality is this factory building is highly sifjoant to New
Zealands history for aesthetic, architectural, wali scientific,
technological and economic reasons. It needs tpreserved as
does the old cheese factory we discovered duriegptiocess of
our investigation.

We need to ensure National treasures such asréhisoadestroyed
for short term gain.

-
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